Frequently Asked Questions, Comments, and Responses
Central Valley Flood System Conservation Framework and Strategy 
Draft Proposal Solicitation Package (PSP) 

Funding/Cost Considerations

Q: For a comprehensive multi-purpose project that is seeking funding for only the environmental component, could an applicant base its local cost share on that used for the overall project?
A: Yes, the applicant can base the proposed cost-share in the proposal on that used for the project as a whole. Proposals will be reviewed case by case as to whether the economics make sense for the ecological benefits to be generated by the project. 

Q: Regulatory agencies typically require an endowment to provide assurance of funding for long-term maintenance of a property. How does anybody get the endowment handled if this bond funding can’t be used to fund an endowment? Would it be a case of a mitigation banker offering a prearranged price for mitigation credits in advance of developing that mitigation or in advance of needing that credit? 
A: This question refers to a bulk advance acquisition of credits, similar to what’s going on in the Delta with the Delta Levees Program. Although the Department recognizes the value in purchasing existing mitigation credits because the endowment is already covered in the purchase price, and purchase of existing credits is allowed per the Guidelines that are the basis of this PSP, the Department is not interested in pursuing acquisition of existing credits at this time unless such purchase would result in a net increase in habitat extent or condition above what is currently in place.

In the absence of purchasing existing credits where the endowment is already in place, the question of funding the endowment comes down to what project partners may be available to provide some of that money, or to commit to undertaking maintenance of the property in perpetuity. 

Another option is that if a project were going to operate as a mitigation bank, there could be a way to divide the property such that the bank ‘host’ could keep a chunk of the property and sell it to others that may pay a little bit more for mitigation credits, and try to raise finances that way. Such considerations would have to be negotiated in individual contracts. 

We recognize that the endowment issue is a challenge.

Q: Can these funds be used for acquisition as well as project design and construction? 
A: Yes, these funds can be used for land acquisition as well as project design and construction. The Department will review all proposals in the context of what the acquisition would provide in terms of conservation and mitigation.

Q: How would an applicant estimate the endowment required by a regulatory agency for long-term maintenance? Normally when you’re working on mitigation projects, it’s been determined what the mitigation is going to be and what will be required, so cost can be determined. 
A: The Department is in discussion with regulatory agencies to get an idea about what their monitoring and reporting requirements might be so costs might be estimated; applicants are encouraged to do the same. The IRT checklist provided as an attachment to the draft PSP includes reference to documents that would conduct this type of fiscal analysis (“Exhibit D” – Bank Management and Operation Documents). 

Q: We mentioned that there is no cost-share required, but if applicants don’t have any money for long-term maintenance, could the project be selected or not?
A: It is difficult for the Department to answer this question definitively until all aspects of a proposal have been evaluated. If funding has not been identified for long-term maintenance, this may not necessarily preclude the Department funding a proposal. It will be a challenge, but the Department doesn’t want to foreclose on any options until more is known about the individual proposals. For example, there could be a possibility that a regulatory fish or wildlife agency might be comfortable in approving advance mitigation credit absent long-term funding if a property is already in public ownership and an entity already managing nearby properties agrees to take on the long-term maintenance of that property themselves. 

Q: There’s a statement on page 3 of the PSP that maintenance activities could be funded; in light of previous questions regarding endowments, what maintenance activities might be covered and how long might the grant term be?
The Department can fund maintenance activities required under the contract, for the term of the agreement or until the bond funds expire at the end of State FY 15/16. This represents more of an establishment cost than a long-term maintenance cost. Standard agreements are for two or possibly three years. In developing the Central Valley Flood System Conservation Strategy, the Department is looking to secure other long-term funding sources for implementing Conservation Strategy activities. The funding Guidelines state that the Department can issue periodic PSPs as well as provide Directed Action funding, so it’s possible that in the future, it could continue to fund maintenance of these projects. Recognizing that this might be a challenge absent identification of long-term funding sources, the maintenance and reporting activities beyond the contract term could be considered as contribution of matching funds. 

Q: Can applicants propose to match this Prop 1E money with other State grant bond funding? 
A: No, the Department cannot allow applicants to offset costs with other State bond funds and call it a “match”. Funding match may include, but is not limited to, federal funds, local funding, or donated services from non-State sources. 

Q: Are there limits on when matching costs can be incurred (i.e. prior to or after the grant term)?
A: Yes – matching costs cannot be incurred prior to the grant term, but may be incurred after the grant term. As an example, completion of planning and design activities prior to the grant term means these costs would not be included in the budget request as part of this grant proposal, and while these would not count as matching or in-kind contributions, such proposals would be expected to score higher in technical/political feasibility due to milestones achieved to date. In terms of identifying matching costs incurred after the grant term, the Department views this as one way to address the endowment issue: recognizing that the bond funding will only be available for a two- or three-year contract, but that five or ten (or more) years of maintenance and reporting may be required by regulatory agencies, applicants could identify that ongoing future maintenance and reporting as a contribution of matching funds in the proposal.

C: The FESSRO PSP provides for an indirect (overhead) reimbursement rate of 5%.  This is a concern to some NGOs that have overhead rates significantly above the proposed indirect reimbursement rate.  Please consider allowing a flat 10% reimbursement rate on indirect (overhead) costs.  
R: DWR modified the language in the final PSP to better reflect federal OMB rates: “DWR will limit disbursement of funding for indirect and overhead costs to 10% of total project cost, but reserves the right to allow reimbursement in accordance with federal guidelines (OMB Circular A-87) if determined to be reasonable.” 

C: DWR should consider allowing for the payment of mitigation establishments costs based on the requirements outlined in resource agency permits instead of arbitrarily setting a three year time period after plantings are complete.
R: DWR has the option of providing some of these costs through future Directed Action funding, but cannot commit to providing any more Proposition 1E bond funding once the existing bond funds expire at the end of State FY 15/16. 

Q: There is a statement on page 4 that DWR will pay a maximum of 20% total project costs (up to $1 million) for pre-construction engineering costs (planning, permitting and/or design) associated with the construction of a project.  If not used for these purposes, could that funding go towards an endowment for long term maintenance?  
A: These bond funds cannot be used to fund an endowment. However, if for example an applicant already had some money for project activities and received grant funding for those activities instead, the applicant could choose to reallocate the funding it had prior to receiving the grant toward an endowment.

C: Matching funds that may be applied from grant funds or other sources may also be counted as mitigation in another program; as a result, the mitigation would not be exclusive to DWR. 
R: The determination of how much ‘advance mitigation’ credit would accrue to DWR for future work at SPFC facilities will be negotiated on a case-by-case basis in terms of DWR’s contributions toward overall project cost and in light of other restrictions tied to any matching funds. 

C: The current policy of Interagency Review Teams is not to allow the use of grant funds to cover any costs associated with acquisition, development, monitoring, or management of conservation or mitigation banks.
R: IRT is one possible method of achieving Advance Mitigation objectives. There may be cases where an assurance of long-term management of a project would make some fish and wildlife regulatory agencies comfortable agreeing to advance mitigation or conservation, regardless of funding source. The Department does not want to preclude any options.  

C: Under “Cost Considerations” criteria, prioritization should be based on the amount of ecosystem service value produced per dollar of State funding, not ‘reasonableness’ as determined by amount of funding match based on the projected cost of implementing practices. 
R: This suggestion has been incorporated; additional text has been added to the Cost Considerations criteria. 

Q: It seems long-term maintenance funding is defined as whether or not the issue has been addressed by identifying potential funding sources in the concept proposal.  So, a couple of questions: (1) In the concept proposals, applicants would just need to develop a potential strategy for funding long term maintenance, correct?; and (2) If the applicant moves to the next round and funding for long term maintenance is still not secured, is there a point where the DWR would require that, if so, when? 
A: Long-term monitoring and maintenance funding is usually required by fish and wildlife regulatory agencies as part of approving certified mitigation credits that can be sold or traded, but there may be situations where the agencies might be comfortable in approving advance mitigation credits absent long-term funding, if other assurances are in place.

The concept proposals could include a potential strategy for funding long-term maintenance, but this probably would not score as high as a concept proposal that identifies a funding source from a partnering entity for that long-term maintenance, if required by the agencies. The Project Evaluation Team will be looking at how likely it is that this funding will be available. 


Project Evaluation Team/Scoring Considerations

Q: If a proposal is for the acquisition of private property and associated water, mineral, and other rights, would it receive a lower score because those rights have not yet been secured? 
A: Not necessarily; this is more of a concern for properties that are acquired in easement title. The Department just wants to make sure that everything is in place so that a project is technically feasible. So for fee title acquisition where all of the rights would be acquired, DWR doesn’t see this as a demerit for the application.

Q: Is there a specific minimum level of design that the Department is seeking at this point? A proposal may be to use some of this money to come up with the design itself. 
A: No, there is no minimum level of design required, and the bond money can be used to develop some of these planning documents and agreements (up to 20% of total project cost can be used for planning and design activities and development of agreements). However, in terms of the Department’s interest in bringing a project to fruition in the near term, those projects that seem to be a little farther along would probably score higher than a project that’s just starting to be developed, particularly because the Department expects regulatory agencies would need some of this detail before they can agree in concept to provide regulatory assurances of advance mitigation or conservation credit for that project.

Q:  Is there a way to have wildlife-compatible agriculture count as mitigation for impacts to wetlands?  For example, could bird-friendly agricultural farm easements count as wetlands mitigation (the result being protected winter-flooded farmland), but less than natural wetland protection and restoration? And is there a way to have this mitigation offset impacts to agricultural lands, as an incentive to protect important agricultural lands that serve as open space and buffers?
A: This would be the decision of the state and federal fish and wildlife regulatory agencies, subject to whether they value winter-flooded farmland and if so, at what ratio. Note that in regard to wetlands mitigation, DWR is not anticipating participation from the USACE for regulation of impacts to wetlands at this time; that approval process will therefore remain separate from any agreements with fish and wildlife regulatory agencies obtained with this grant funding. 

C: Within the PSP, please identify which agencies will make up the “team of reviewers”. Will the FloodSAFE coordinators be able to participate on the team?
R: The team of reviewers will include personnel from DWR, DFG, USFWS, and NMFS; this has been clarified in the PSP. It will be up to the discretion of each agency to determine who from that agency should be involved in the review of the concept and full proposals. The proposals will be distributed to one contact person at each agency through the existing Conservation Strategy Interagency Advisory Team (IAC), who will in turn distribute them to appropriate personnel as determined by each agency’s management.  

Q: In reference to scoring, what are ‘intermediate points’?
A: It is expected that individual reviewers will be subjective in scoring the proposals. When the interagency review team meets as a whole to discuss the proposals and come to consensus on a score, it is possible that the points assigned to a category as the ‘consensus’ score may fall slightly higher or lower than some of the ‘possible points’ indicated in the table, based on those discussions and professional judgment.


C: Recommend that at least one member of the Sacramento District IRT be a reviewing member of the PSP submittals to assure that projects will meet the requirements for compensatory mitigation.
R: At this time, DWR plans to continue working with representatives from DFG, USFWS, and NMFS to develop advance mitigation or advance conservation agreements. These agreements are not intended or expected to serve the needs of USACE as a regulator of impacts to wetlands.


Miscellaneous/General

Q: Within the context of the Advance Conservation category, if an NCCP is not currently in place, can applicants link themselves to a future State NCCP for the flood control system?
A: Yes, this is a possibility. There have been discussions about the Department preparing an NCCP for the flood management system, but it has not yet committed to do that. The project needs to provide advance mitigation or conservation credit for future work at SPFC facilities, and the regulatory agencies need to acknowledge in a good-faith agreement or an MOA that the money expended will lead to this advance credit. 

Q: Will these proposals be considered “public work projects” subject to prevailing wage requirements?
A: Most likely. The three critical elements defining a “public work” are: (1) the project must involve construction, alteration, repair or maintenance; (2) the work must be performed under contract; and (3) the work must be paid in whole or in part out of public funds. Construction is broadly construed and includes work during design and preconstruction phases of a project, including inspection and surveying work, alteration, demolition, installation or repair work. As a general rule, most habitat restoration contracts are probably going to be for public works, but the Department would need to examine the scope of work. The license classification is going to depend on the scope of work and is best dealt with in the Work Agreement.

C: DWR should consider providing applicants 60 days to submit a full application package; this will allow adequate time for the local agency to secure resolutions from all partner agencies that are part of the project. 
R: This change was incorporated into the final PSP.

Q: Do the bullet points at the bottom of page 3 (Advance Mitigation and Advance Conservation) eliminate some things that might be in the Conservation Framework or Strategy? Is there a distinction between the two because different type of costs might be eligible under one but ineligible under the other?
A: The bullets are reflective of some of the limitations of Proposition 1E for funding projects in the near term, but do not necessarily eliminate some of the concepts espoused by the Conservation Framework or the Conservation Strategy under development. 

The distinction between Advance Mitigation and Advance Conservation is based more on regulatory context in existing permitting mechanisms of state and federal fish and wildlife agencies than it is on any funding limitations. Advance Mitigation is expected to yield a credit that can be used in the future; Advance Conservation is expected to yield incidental take coverage that could reduce regulatory obligations in the future.

What is important is the assurance from regulatory agencies that investments of Prop 1E money in the near term will yield advance credits, or take coverage, that can accrue to future work at SPFC facilities. 

C: Appendix A is not included within the PSP document.
R: For logistical reasons, the appendices were posted as separate links on the FESSRO website referenced in the public notice. The appendices can be viewed at http://www.water.ca.gov/floodsafe/fessro/floodway/conservation 

C: The table of species and habitats is not complete; for example, Delta and longfin smelt are not included. We should not preclude projects that provide habitat for species not listed in Table 1, or it should be stated in the PSP that it is not limited to projects providing habitat for the target list of species.
R: The PSP states that “The species and habitats targeted to benefit from activities funded under this PSP include, but are not limited to, those listed in Table 1.”

The IAC and Conservation Strategy Development subcommittee have been working towards  development of the Conservation Strategy that would accompany the 2017 CVFPP Update. That group reviewed some initial tables that included a much more extensive list of plant and animal species impacted by flood management, and continues to weigh in as the Conservation Strategy development effort proceeds. 

In the interim, and in light of the requirement that any Prop 1E expenditures yield mitigation credit(s) in advance of future work at SPFC facilities, a shorter list was included within the PSP, although funding will not necessarily be allocated to projects that benefit only those species. This shorter list includes species potentially requiring focused conservation planning, including: (1) species currently State or federally listed as threatened or endangered, or with a high potential of being listed during the next 5-10 years (e.g., species with CNPS List 1B.1 status); and (2) species with conservation needs unlikely to be met without focused measures because of restricted range (e.g., riparian brush rabbit), specialized habitat requirements (e.g., bank swallow), or landscape level habitat requirements, such as proximity of nesting and breeding habitat or connectivity of multiple habitats (e.g., Swainson's hawk, giant garter snake).


